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INTRODUCTION

In this paper, I am going to write the story of the ac-
quisition of the Panama Canal.. Whenever you speak of the
Panama Canal you must invariably also speak of the connection
which Theodore Roosevelt had with it. Historians and critics
have discussed Roosevelt®s policies, in reference to the
canal, for nearly three quarters of a century, and they will
probably continue to discuss them for centuries to come. The
reason for all of this discussion is the fact that, “The
canal is the greatest tangible resultﬁqf his (Roosevelt®’s)

. R
Presidency."

Roosevelt was a man of action and conviction,  His atti-
tudes and policies concerning the canal seem to be mere re-
flections of his overall nature. 1In his autobiography,
Roosevelt states: '

By far the most important action I took in
foreign affairs during the time I was Pres-
ident related to the Panama Canal. ...At
different stages of the affair believers in
a do-nothing policy denounced me as having
'usurped authority" -~ which meant, that when
nobody else could or would exercise: effl—
cient authority, I exercised it., 2
Roosevelt exercised his authority extremely well in dealing

with the Panama Canal --as a matter of fact, he may have

overexercised it,




CHAPTER I
Long before Theodore Roosevelt became President of the
United States, the American government hgdAshown repeated in-
terést in thevbuilding of an interoceanic canal, 1During Pres=-
ident Jackson'sladministration the Senate had passed a resolu-
tion(1835) giving the President the authority to begin negoti-
ations with other countriés'COncerning means of transportation
betwéen the Atlantic and thé Pacific oceans. Contacts were
made with New Granada and the governments of Central America.
with the purpose of ",..assuring to American citizens the free
use of any canal which might be built,"3 But the efforts of
Jackson, and later on, of Van Buren did little to accomplish
this purpose. Fiﬁally,’in“lSﬁé, during Polk'é administration,
a treaty of amity and commerce was established with New
Granada. |
The thirty*fifth article of this treaty contains é stipu-||.

lation which would serve as the basis for important actions
by the American government in future years. This same articlé
would also play 2 significant role in President Theodofe
Roosevelt's policy toward Panama and Colombia., The following
are the'host important features ofvthe stipulation:

*The Govermment of New Granada guarantees to

the Government of the United States that the

right of way or transit across the Isthmus of

Panama upon any modes of communication that

now exist, or that may be hereafter consiructed,

shall be open and free to the Government and

citizeng of the United States: ...and, in

order to secure to themselves the tranquil

and constant enjoyment of these advantages,
»+othe United States guarantee, positively and
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efficaciously, to New Granada, by the present
stipulation, the perfect neutrality of the

- before-mentioned isthmus, with the view that:
the free transit from the one to the other
sea may not be interrupted or embarrassed in
any future time while this treaty exists;
and, .in consequence, the United States also
guarantee, in the same manner, the rights of

sovereignity and property which New Granada

has and possesses over the said 'terr:‘Li‘,or;}r'‘.1‘L

This treaty and especially this thirty-fifth article is one of
the major points iﬁvolVedAin-disoussing‘whéther Theodore
Rooseveit acted justly in tﬁe acquisition of the Panamé Cana1;
it will be discussed in more detzil in a later chapter,-

Shortly after the Treaty with New Granada was ratified
the United States entered into the Clayton-Bulwer Treaty (1850)
with Great Britian. This treaty provided "...neither the
Ameriéén or the British Government Would seek any exclusive
control over a canal through Nicaragua.“S By the end of the
niheteénth cenfury, the United States would become more im-
perialistic in nature and would have no desire in sharing a
canal with another world power. Thus, the Clayton-Bulwer
Treaty would become a major obstacle to coﬁplete'Amefican
confrol of a canai.

During the ‘latter part of the nineteenth century, several
private companies made unsucceéssful attempts in the con-
struction of a canal. An American éompany in Nicaragua failed
in 1893 because of financiai troubles? Meanwhile, a French
company in Panama had done a great deal of excavation but they

too ran into financial problems, "It had become evident by

the end of the century that. the canal would be built only if .




the power and resources of the United States government
itself were devoted to the task."7

Congress had'already established several commissions by
the end of the nineteenth century to study possible canal
routes, but little.else had been done. It took the Spanish-
American War to get Americans and Theodore Roosevelt seriously
interested in a canal. As Henry Pringle, a biOgrapher of
Roosevelt writes:

His interest, like that of his fellow citizens,
was greatly intensified by the hurried voyage
of the U.S.S, COregon around the Horn to join
the fleet off Cuba in the Spanish war, Until
then a canal had been commendable, but now it
- was essential. Roosevelt, exiled from national
.affairs as governor of New York but nursing his
hopes for greater glory, considered it in terms
of national defense, not economic importance. 8
With American. interest at a high pitch, Congress authorized
the Walker Commission(l899§~to study all possible canél S
routes,'especially those in Nicaragua and Panama, This com-
mission was established with the intention that the United
States would be. the sole constructor of the canal,

At this point, President McKinley wanted to bring-about
more positive action concerning a canal, His own enthusiasm -
for the project was growing and in his annual ﬁeSSage to
Congress he urged them to do more:

'All of these circumstances {concerning the
canal) suggest the urgency of some definite
action by the €ongress at this session if the
labors of the past are to be utilized and the
linking of the Atlantic and Pacific oceans by
a practical waterway is to be realized., That

the construction of such a maritime highway
is now more than ever indispensable to that




intimate and ready intercommunication between
our eastern and western seaboards demanded by
‘the annexation of the Hawaiian Islands and
the prospective expansion of our influence _
and commerce in the Pacific, and that our na-
tional policy now more imperatively than ever
calls for its control by this government, are
propositions which I doubt not the Congress
will duly appreciate and wisely act upon'. 10

Congress did begin to move forward but a preblem also began

to emérgee

With everyons calling for the United States to be the
sole constructor of the canal, something had to be done to
abrogate the Clayton-Bulwer Treaty which had forbidden the
United States and Great Britian from building and controlling
a canal separately. McKinley called upon his Secretary of
State, John Hay, to begin negotiations with Great Britian for
the purpose of'changing the treaty. Roosevelt did not feel
these negotiations4were necessary. As Governor of New York
he ",..advised Hay to ignore'the:CiaytoneBulwer Treaty and
to proceed with the construction of the canal with or without
Britian's consent, arguing that ‘a nation has the right to.
abrogate a treaty,...for what she regards as sufficient

11 ' : ‘
cause' . """

Hay shunned Roosevelt’s advice and soon entered into
negotiations with Lord Pauncefort of Great Britian. The First
Hay-Pauncefort Treaty began to take shape. The British had
to admit that the conditions under which the Clayton-Bulwer
Treaty had been signed no longer existed., The financial and

naval power of the two countries had immensely changed in




fifty yearse American possessions in the Caribbean had
increased while British possessions had decreased. The
English were more willing to give in to the United States be-
cause they now were in control of the Suez Canal which meant
. : [~ J
much more to them then a canal in the Americas.1~
The results;df the First Hay-Pauncefort Treaty amended

the o0ld ClaytohsBulwer Treaty;such that the United States
would now be authorized to construct, manage and control ény
proposed canal. The waterway was to be neutral'and "..aopeh
in both peace and war while foreign powers were to be ina
vited to subscribe to the treaty in a kind of Jjoint guar-
antee}"13
When the treaty was submitted to the Senate for ratifi-
cafion,'protests arose whiéhuﬁay and the advocates of the
' ' ST L o
treaty were not able to control. “:Roosevélt was one of the
antagonists of the treaty as Pringle states:

He (Roosevelt) opposed the First Hay7Pauncefort

Treaty with Great Britian because it decreed

that a canal built by the United States could

not be fortified. This, Roosevelt declared,

'strengthens against us every nation whose

fleet is larger than ours®. He objected es-

pecially to any provision that permitted

"foreign governments a voidce in the control

of the canal. This contravened the Monroe

Doctrine. 15
Much of the Senate and the public were convincéd that the
treaty had to be revised before it could be accepted, These

revisions were well on their way to completion when McKinley

was assasinated and Roosevelt became President.




Wwith Roosevelt as President, the demand for revision of
the treaty had been greatly strengthened and the new Hay-

Pauncefort Treaty was soon re-~negotiated and signéd on

6

November 18, 1901,1 The new treaty completely abrogated the

Clayton~-Bulwer Treaty. Munro gives the best summary of the
treaty as he states:

...1t was agreed that the canal might ‘'be.con-

structed under the auspices of the Government

of the United States' and that *subject to the

provisions of the present treaty, the said

Government shall have and enjoy all the rights

incident to such construction, as well as the
~exclusive right of providing for the regulation

and management of the canal', Article III laid

down rules for the neutralization of the canal,

providirig especially that *the canal shall be.

free and open to the vessels of commerce .and

cf war of all nations observing these rules,

on terms of entire equality,® and that no

right of war should be exercised nor any act

of hostility committed within it. 17

Under the treaty the United States was also alloﬁed 1o main—
taiﬁ military police along the canal "...as might be needed
to protect it from lawlessness and d.isordeln,"l8
The Senate ratified the treaty four weeks after it was
signed and as Pringle statéss_ "It must have gratified
Rooseveit to know that the'first important treaty negotiated

while he was Presidént terminated theAproviéioné of ‘the

Clayton—Bulwer'pagt of 18504whereby_Great.Britian and the

The days were past when it was unclear if the Americans would
be the sole constructors of the canal. Roosevelt's own en-

thusiasm for the project can be seen in his message to

. i @ o
United States agreed to joint control and nonafortification."1




Congress concerning the canal:

evslt is emphatically a work which it is for
the interest of the entire country to begin
and complete as soon as possible; it is one
of those great works which only a great na-
tion can undertake with prospects of success,
and which when done are not only permanent
assets in the nation's material interests,
but standing monuments to its constructive
ability., 20 ‘

Throughout negotiation of the Hay-Pauncefort Treaty it
is interesting to note that both sides felt they were pro-. -’
viding for a canal through Nicaragua and not for one through
Panama, In a letter Hay wrote to a British consultant on
September 29, 1901, he stated:

*T.think it hardly conceivable that any other

route than Nicaragua will be chosen, The House

of Representatives has declared for it by a

vote of two to one, and the Senate is appar-

ently of the same mind; but whatever route

shall be chosen I think our draft of treaty

pledges us to adopt the principles of neutral-

ization therein set forth,...' 21
At this time Roosevelt too seems to have been blinded to the
possibility of a Panama Canal., In all of his messages con-~
cerning a canal Roosevelt either mentioned Nicaragua or he
did not specify a route at all,22

There were others, however, that wquld work foy the
adaptation of the Panama route., First, there was Phillipe
Bunau~varilla, én‘engineer and @atriot,'who held a large share
of stock in the bankrupt French Canal Company which he was

trying to save. Secondly, there was Nelson Cromwell, a lawyer

who would claim $800,000 in fees from the same French company,

Although the two men were bitter rivals, they both would work




for their own gain and as Bunaufyarilla'states: “"For Truth,
) .

Justice, and National Interests,"“3 Whenever 1t appeared

that the final approval would be givén'to the Nicaraguan

route, it became the duty of these two men to see that the

Panama route received more éncouragement and that it was.a

viable substitute for the Nicaraguan route,2§

Their struggle for the Panama route was an immense under-
taking, . It appeared that fhe'Uﬁitéd States had already made
up its mind: ' | '

The press, the official commiséions, the candi~

dates for Presidency, the political men, every-

one - had, before, during, and after the cre-

ation of the Panama Canal, condemned it and ’

exalted the idea of Nicaragua., When it was

seen in America that the great enterprise was

being systematically destroyed by the French,

the certainiy of its impracticability was

further increased. The destruction was re-

garded with pleasure in America, because people

saw in 1t the proclamation of the superiority

of the foresight and the accuracy of the tech-

nical judgement the American mind. 25
The only politician who was convinced of the rightness of the
Panama route was. Senator Mark Hanna of Ohio. Cromwell and
Bunau-Varilla would continually support his efforts because
he was their only major link to Congress,

Cromwell is generally regarded as the man who was re-
sponsible for the fihst recognition of the possiblity &% the
PanamaAfoute. This recognition is. for his work at the
Republican National Convention in 1899. The convention, which
nominated McKinley and Roosevelt, was ready to go on record

as favoring the Nicaraguan route when Cromwell persuaded them




to have the platform changed with the words Tsthmanian Canal
inserted in place of the Nicaragua Canal. "It was the first
occasion on which it was publicly recognized that a canal ~ -
other than that of Nicaragua was possible.“zé' It became known
later that ",..Mr. Cromwell had donated $460,000 to the
Republican National Ccmmittée'and had charged it; as. a neces-
. oo
sary expense, to the canal company.” 4
Buhauavarilla, whose interest in mohey was less impor-
tant than his conviction that Panama was the best route, began
contébting Senator Hanna and totally convinced him that the
‘ ] . 28
cause of Panama was the only true and just one. With
McKinley's death. however, Varilla did not know if his ally,
Senator Hanna, would be able to have as much impact on the new
President as he had had on McKinley. varilla therefore got
the French Canal Company to reduce its sale price to
$40,000,000: =2 price acceptablé to the Walker Commission
which was investigating the possible canal roﬁtes,?9_ This
price-cut was a turning point, at least in Roosevelt's mind:
The price-~cut marked, it would seemnm,
Roosevelt's first recognition that Panama was
a preferable route. 'Originally I had been
for Nicaragua,' he said some years later.
. When word of the reduction came, however,
he persuaded the canal commission to change
its reccomendation to Panama., He was by no
means ready, on the other hand,. to force
his views on Congress, 30
Nicaragua was still favored by most of the Congressmen,

and even with Hanna's vigorous efforts and Roosevelt's

leaning, it appeared that the Panama route would be defeated.




Bunauevarllla agaln entered the battle and w1th some well

rlmed help from nature he seemed to turn the tlde.' VarlllaH[: -

‘li had spoken of- volcanlc act1v1ty in. Nlcaragua but few peopleuff.fulr

: had . taken h1m serlously. However, on the nlght before the

last maaor Senate debate, Mount Monatombo, 1n Nlcaragua,,

erupted

ThlS very volcano was engraved on some. Nlcaraguan.

stamps and Varllla qulokly purchased a- number of them and =

passed them out 1n the eerate, " He called the stamps, "An

31&,,«

~off101al w1tness of the volcanlc act1v1ty of Nlcaragua "

Thls last blt of work by Varllla seems to have been the :

- cllncher as the Senate now called for the adoptlon of the

',Panama route.f‘

Both Cromwell and Bunau Varllla clalm clalmed credlt for

'im thls v1ctory, but in reallty 1t was both of thelr efforts,

Lcomblned w1th those of Hanna, Wthh made the Spooner Act pos~,;fd

Slblec )

Thls act was approved on Jhne 28 190 v and 1t

“fc..prov1ded for the. constructlon of the canal
‘ahd created an- Isthmlan Canal* Commission to

conduct the work., - The Pres1dent ‘was authornE"”'

ized to acquire thé rights and property of- the'
French company at a cost not to. exceed forty

million dollars, and to acquire from' Colombia, -~ = -

-upon such-terms as he might deem reasonable, -

“iafthe perpetual control of a strip of land and»

" the right: to construct a ‘canal -therein. ' If

it should prove impossible to obtain a satis--

- factory title from the French company, or. to
“reach ah agreement with Colombla, ‘the canal

~'5<was to be constructed in Nlcaragua. 32

: The flgh+ for the Panama route had been won . bur both Cromwell‘

and Bunauevarllla had much more work to do before constructlon ff‘

of the oanal would become a reallty, Up to thls p01nt

S N1 | R
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Roosevelt had not figured into Cromwell's or Bunau-Varilla's

11

plans because of his relative inactivity concerning the canal,

This period of inactivity was soon to come to an end,




CHAPTER II

~Witﬁ the passage of the Spooner Act, Roosevelt’'s period
of relative inactivity concerning the canal came to an end, .
He was firmly con&inced that he must get the canal built as
soon as possible, »Even with the passage of the Spooner Act,
however, Panama was not the guaranteed éite of the canal,
Colombia would have to give her consent before a canal could
be built through Panama, Colombia was not willing to give in
easily to the United étates9 and this irritated the President.
Henry Pringle states: "When Colombia hesitated in accepting:
the proposals of the United States, the Pfesident became an
ardent partisan of Panama, In this fact lay the hopé of
Cromwell and Bunauavarilla,"

For Bunau-Varilla especially, this was not a period of
rest. He knew, that unless a tréaty was conciudéd With
Colombia, the provisions of the Spooner Act called for the
canal to be built through ﬁicaragua. -If this would happeﬁ,
all of his previoué'effoftslwould have been wasted, - Varilla
began to confer with Roosevélt, Hay and‘Cromwell;Ausing his
influence to hurry treaty hégotiations with Cdlombia; Varilla
llalso sent telegrams to President'Marroquin of Colombia,
warning him that excessive greed on Colombia's part would be
very damgerous.BLP : o

Meanwhile; Secretary of State Hay héd begun negotiations
with Josg Vincente Concha, Colombian minister to the United

States, Concha, however, soon felt thaﬁ Hay was being unfair
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to Colombia and he left the country in disgust. Concha's
assisstant, Herran, resumed the negotiations with Hay and
signed a treaty on January 22, 1903;'on1y after Hay had
threatened that the Nicarazguan route ﬁould be substituted.
The Senate ratified the treaty on March 17, 1903.35

The Hay-Herran Treaty provided that the United States
would pay Colombia $10,000,000 in gold to purchase the canal
and another $250,000 was to be paid yéarly as reht of the
canal, In return, Colombia would graﬁt the United States the
right to build the canal and the right to control a strip of
land three miles wide on each side of the canal, The cities
of Panéma and Colon were to be excluded from Améfican con?>
trol.36 The treaty was also supposed to guaraﬁtee the sov-
ereignfy of Colombia over the canal but "...stipukations hgd
been inserted that no.free people would willingly have ac-
cepted,“B? The United States had inserted a provisionrpro~
tecting the rights of the. New Panama Canal Company; for whom
Cromwell was working. Colombia was forbidden to negotiate
with the canal company. In other words, ﬁhe treaty would not
allow Colombia to demand a share of the $46,000,000 that the
United . States had already agreed to pay to fhe canal company.
Another stipulation in the treaty!established American courts
in the canal zone, | |

The reaction to the\treaﬁy in Colombia was éxtreme1y

negative, The Colombian public was strongly opposed to the

treaty., FEven Bunau-Varilla, who never loved Colombia, admit-



http:reaction.to

o appeared to be 1n a blnd,_ On the one hand, Marroquln faced

v'.would happen. .,¢’

'rf.Government that the Uhlted States would ...00ﬂ31der any

ted that the treaty severely llmlted the soverelgnty of

Colombla over the canal )9 Pre81dent Marroquln of Colombla

an un?alr treaty whlch hlS representatlve in Washlngton had

smgned.; On the other hand,‘the possmblllty that Panana would

‘secede from Colombla unless the treaty wae ratlfled was be« gf’757

cemlng more reallstlc Bunau Varllla was constantly sendlng

telegrams to Bogcta threatenlng Narroquln that exactly thls
L0 . - : o .

| Marroquln was 1n a dellcate pos1t10n but 1netead of.
"actlng on. “the ratlflcatlon of the treaty, he stalled for more
x tlme, When the treaty was flnally presented to the Colomblan
t Congress it met w1th 1mmedlate dlsapproval Colombla wanted
|| ehare of the $40 OOO 000" belng pald to the canal company

' and she wanted more money from the Unlted States for the rlght
1l to bulld tbe oanal.; Hay had refused these same alternatlvee :
: durlng the treaty negotlatlons and now he 1nformed Colombla

B that unlees she acted scon to ratlfy the treaty the whole
agreement weuld be destroyed.al' Roosevelt, worklng through.

"Hay, was becomlng 1mpat1ent He had Hay 1nform the Colomblan

modlflcatlon whatever of the terms. of the treaty as praCm '4

o

tlcally a breach of falth on the part of the Government of E‘fi5fxa

bp
Colombwa." Lo
o Unable to obtaln more money or to guarantee her S0V =

erelgnty, the Colomblan Congress; really a rubberwstamp group
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for Marroquin, formally re jected the treaty on Aﬁgust 12,
1903,%3  Roosevelt was infuriated and he stated: "Those
contemptible liﬁtle creatures in Bogota ought to gnderstand _

how much they are jeopardizing things and imperiling their

Ly K . : . o

own future," He referred to the Colombians as "jack rab-~'-
M : s

bits™ and "foolish and homicidal corruptionists,® "*You
could no more make an agreement with the Colombian rulers,’'

he (Roosevelt) snorted, 'than you could nail currant jelly to
Lé

a wall®, " Roosevelt's impatience and his use of this type’
of 1anguage hardly fits the déscription of his conduct which

he latér spoke Qf;as ", ..the highest, finest; and nicest

W7

standafds‘of public and governmeﬁtal etﬁicé,“
Several authors have critieized‘Roosevelt heavily for
his dealings with Colombia-concerning the Hay-~Herran Treaty.
Most historians consider his éctions as unfair diplomatic
correspondence. Rogsevelt, however, always felt he was aéting
in a just manner. This is.exemplified in his meSsage to
Congress of December 7, 1§03: |

last spring, a treaty concluded between the
representatives of the Republic of Colombia and
of our Government was ratified by the Senate.
This treaty was entered into at the urgent so-
" licitation of Colombia and after a body of ex-~
perts appointed by our Government especially to
go into the matter of the routes across the
Isthmus had pronounced unanimously in favor of-
the Panamé route. In drawing up this treaty
every concession was made to the people and
the Govermnment of Colombia, We were more than
just in dealing with them. OQOur. generosity was
~such as to make it a serious question whether
‘we had not gone too far in their interest at
the expense of our own; for in our scrupulous



http:wall'.11
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desire to pay all p0381b1e heed, not merely to
the real but even to the fancied rights of our
wealker neighbor, who already owed so much to

. our protection and forebearance, we yleldeé in
all possible ways to her desires in drawing up
the treaty. Nevertheless the Government of
Colombia not merely repudiated the treaty, but
repudiated it in such manner as to make it
evident by the time the Colombian Congress
adaourned that not the scantiest hope re-
mained of ever gettlng a satlsfactory treaty
from them. 48

Again, in his message to Congress on January 4, 1904,
Roosevelt defended his actions as being just:

while it was settled that the canal should be
“built without unnecessary or improper delay,
it was no less clearly shown to be our purpose
to deal not merely in a spirit of justice but
in a spirit of generosity with the people
through whose land we might build it,., The
Hay=-Herran Treaty, if it erred at all, erred
in the direction of an overgenerosity toward
the Colombian Government. In our anxiety to

. be fair we had gone to the very verge in -
vielding to a weak nation's demands what that
nation was helplessly unable to enforce from
us against our will, The only criticisms
made upon the administration for the terms
of the Hay~Herran Treaty were  for having
granted too much to Colombia, not for failure
to grant enocugh. ~ Neither in the Congress nor
in the public press, at the time that this
treaty was formulated, was their complaint

“that it did not in the fullest and amplest
manner guarantee to Colombia everything that
she could by any color of title demand, 49

Bothiof these statements show that Roosevelt was convinced
that the actions thaet he had taken were‘fair,'and thét the
only mistake he may have made was in giving tqé much to
Colombia, If the press and Congress accepted Roosevelt's
actions at that time, later historians have not accepted them.

Men, such as Henry Pringle, feel that: "Roosevelt, as he
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worked himself into a rage at Colombia, distorted the fécts."sj
Pringle feels that it was these distorted facts which
Roosevelt‘presented to Congfess and that his messages must be
understood with that taken into consideration; Howevér,'
vefore an&one can judge Roosevelt, we must return to the story
of Panama which is far from complete,

After it became obvious that Cdlﬁmbia would not accept
the Hayaﬁerran Treaty or anything similar to it, there were
three choices left which R508evelt could pursue. |

i, He could accept the situation and oontinﬁe to ne-
gotiate with Marroquin, or he could begin preparétioné to
construct the canal through Nicardgua{

2, He could carry ouf the terms of the Hay-Herran Treaty||
by forcibly seizing the strip of territory which was to have
been ceded to the United States by the treaty, and then begin
the construction of the canal.

3. Hé could encourage a revolution on the Isthmus of
Panama.si

Roosevelt could not accept the first alternétive, He was
tired of waiting on Colombia and he was convinced that the
cénal must be built through Panama, Rbosevelt felt that the
third alternative was completély immoral and therefore could
not be accepted. 1In a message to Dr. Albert Shaw, an editor

of the Review of Reviews, Roosevelt stated:

'T.cast aside the proposition at this time to
foment the "secessién of Panama. Whatever other
governments can do, the United States can not
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go into the securing, by such underhand means,
the cession, Privately I freely say to you
that I should be delighted if Panama were an
independent state, or if it made itself so at
this moment; but for me to say so publicly
“would amount to an instigation of a revolt,

and therefore I can not say it'. 52

This left Roosevelt with the second alternative as his
only course of aétion, Rooéevelt felt that taking the land
would Be legally justified because of an encounter with John
Moore, an international 1awy§r. Moore had advised Roosevelt
that ",..the treaty of 19@6 with NeQ Granada gave the United
States the right of carrying out the worke necessary for the
canal, regardless of the attitude of Colombia."5 Roésevelt,
apparently using Moore's argument, prepared the first draft
of his annual meséage to Congress (this was before the revq~
lution broke out in Panama) and in this draft he had stated:
mtwe should purchase all the rights of the Panama. Canal
Company and, without furthez‘parléy with Colombia, enter upon
the completion of the canal which the French company has

n5h

begunt. Roosevelt was prepared to use his Big Stick to

obtain what negotiations had been unable to achieve.

It is hard to understand how Robsevelt's mind could
have changed in less than a year, 1In his second annual mes~
sage to Congress in December, 1902,'Rooseve1t had stated:

No independent nation in America need have the
slightest fear of aggression from the United
States, It behoves gach one to maintain order
within its own borders and to discharge its
‘just obligations to foreigners. When this is
done, they can rest assured that, be they
strong or weak, they have nothing to dread




Vﬁffrom out31de 1nterference, More and moré the.
increasing 1nterdependence and” complex1ty of .
~-1nternat10nal political and economic relations -
. render it incumbent on all éivilized and orderly
~.powers to: 1n81st on the proper pollclng of the
“world 55
A year later, Roosevelt was. w1111ng to for01bly take what he
'4wante@ and needed from another Amerlcan country., He must ‘51
have felt that only by taklng Panama could the Unlted States
properly pollce the world Fortunately, or unfortunately,
Roosevelt never gave that flrst drait of hlS message t0‘

Congress because of new developments 1n Panama.,~ -'~e

x’19'f""
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At the end of chapter II I mentloned that new develop—i‘

ments 1n Panama had allowed Roosevelt to cast a81de hlS own l

v“plans for acqulrlng the Panama Canal. These new developments,
were the movements toward revolutlon and later, the actual |

.revolutlon whlch freed Panama from Colombla. In the Unlted -

States, Roosevelt would not speak publlcly concernlng the

‘5,; revolutlonary movement in. Panama but the press dld not feel

nearly as 1nh1b1ted on the matter. George Mowry states-',f

A’Z-By the mlddle of September the Amerlcan press
. -had evidently discovered a promising. revolutlonotw
ary movement in Panama,' 'Many public ‘men of
._,.promlnence8 ‘the anti-imperialistic New. Yorl , L
"% Evening Post stated, are %in favor. of 1nt1mat1ng»”~
to the Panama revolutionists that if they will..
maintain resistance long. enough.,,.thls gov-
~ernment will see to it.that they are not run -
over by the superlor forces of. Colombla’ 56

What we must do, lS to flnd 1f Roosevelt was connected w1th'e?
the revolutlon or 1ts plannlng. Iater, we must flnd how ;;;'
ARoosevelt was able to use Amerlcan forces on the 1sthmus.v
durlng the revolutlon, and how he was able to recognlze the :
new state, Panama, as qulckly as he dld.A - » l
When the Hay =Herran - Treaty was reJected by Colombla, thef
main. consplrators of the Panama revolutlon Cromwell, Bunau~'
Varllla,~and Dr Manuel Amador.,who 1ater became the flrst u
':pre81dent of the republlc of Panama, began to prepare thelr
.plans for the revolutlon,s? These men knew thatv "Ihe fal» :u'

- terlng courage of the Panamanlan patrlots had to be fortlfled;

by promlses that the Unlted States would, 1n splrlt and f
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probably actively, be behind them., Geld with wﬁich to bribe
the Colombian troops had to be suppl'ied,"58 These men,
especiaily Bunau~Varilla, were determined to achieve these
PUrposes, |

Buhau~Varilla and Cromwell both met with Roosevelt.'
Secreﬁary of State Hay, and other governmental figures on
several occassions, The most conclusive meeting, as far as
Bunau~Varilla was concerned, took placelon October‘18, 1203,

59

with Secrefary of State Hay. At this meeting, Hay assured
Bunaumvérilla ".oawWe shall npt be caﬁght napping...orders have
||been given to nzval forces in the Pacific to sail towards the
Isthmusa"‘sO After fhis meefing, Buﬁéu~¥arilla was convinced
that, aithough no money or military 2id would be availabe |
from offioial sources, the American government, if a revolu-
tioh ocufred, would not allow Colombia to use force to sub-
due the uprising. With these insights, Bunau-varilla im-
mediately informed Dr. Amador to hurry necessary preparations'
for the revolutidn.él ' " ‘

Dr. Amador returned %o Panama.with that intention, but
he was not able %o convinqe his fellow patriots of the
American intentions., Therefore, he contacted Bunau-varilla
in Washington and informed him that his comrédes-Would be
reassured only if an,American navy vessel was sent to Colon.
BunaumVarilla,varking on a remark from écting Secretary of

State Loomis, told Dr. Amador that an American warship, the

Nash&illei would arrive at the isthmus within two and a half




days°67--' Professor of History. Howard ¢, Hill, belleves “that-

Bunaroarllla was - only guess1ng that thls 1s what would hap—

| penk Hlll states that

: ']...he(Bunau Varllla) had grounds for hlS expecta—
- tion, Although he does not seem to have received
direct assurance .from the administration that - .-
° American naval vessels would be sent. to the" Isthmus“‘"'
CoAf dlsturbances occurred, he would have been a y
" - very dull man," as Roosevelt says, had he’ not
- been able to make ‘'a very accurate guess ‘con~
-.cernlng what 'our Government would do’ 63

As 1t turned out, Bunau Varllla s guess was qulte accurate,
as the Nashvllle arrlved 1n Colon November 2, 1903;-

On November 1, 1903, the Panama revolutlonlsts, reas«'
sured that the Nashv1lle was on its way to Panama, set : '
,November 3, - 1903, as the date of the revolutlon,_By thls tlme,:"'

'l fthe plans(for a revolutlon) had progressed so .

-~ far that no. need existed for further encourageﬂ.

- ment, " The: Roosevelt Admlnlstratlon had: con~ -

:;chuded, and- Bunau~vVarilla knew it, to make the -

* - Treaty of ‘1846 with. New.Granada’ an. excuse to T

‘ ri_asslst the revolutlonlsts, 65 S . 4v
'.pThe Commander of the Nashv111e, because of the Treaty of 1846

had been ordered to Malntaln free trans1t across the

1sthmus, occupy the rallroad llne if 1t was threatened by

7zarmed forces, and. prevent the 1and1ng of armed forces of the iff_f"

Government of Colombla or of the revolutlonlsts a‘lf they
“1ntended hostlle actlon. | | |

The revolutlon began,-as planned, on November 3, 1903
Amerlcan troops were landed from the Nashv1lle to protect
free translt across the Isthmus.r The rallroad was seized. by-

Unlted States forces so that "no Colomblan troops could dlsw;
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turb the peace of the regibh by putt@ng:down the rebellion
on their own soil; andAother‘Colombian‘trcops on their way to
the troubled zone by sea were refused the right ﬁo,land.“é?
Through bribes, - the Colombian military‘bersonnel who were in
Panama were persuaded to leave the area and on November 3,
1903, fhe revolutionists proudly proclaimed that Panama was
an independent state.68
President Roosevelt was notified that on November 6,
"...freedom had finally and definately been accomplished. He
thereupon acted with naste that was indecent, not to say un-
wise,." A little more than a hour aftervhe was notified,
Roosevelt had Secretary Hay instruct the American consul at
Panama City "...%to recbgnize the de facto government," The
same instructions were sent to the heads of state of both
Colombia and Panama.69
Colombia was in no position to bargain but she still
vigorously protested the actions which the United States had
taken, As Munro sitates: ‘ -
Her representative at Washingfon insinuated
that the revolutionary movement at Panama had
‘been instigated and encougaged by interests
in the United States and by American officisls,
and insisted that the °premature recognition®
of Panama's independence and military measures
-which had been taken were violations of the
treaty of 1846, under which the United States
had guaranteed 'the rights of sovereignty and
property’ of Colombia in the isthmus, 70
Secretary of State Hay responded to Colombia's protests by

stating that all American actions had been done both fairly




:1 and;legallv;, Hay added that "1t was not thought de31rable

; to permlt “the landlnr of Colomblan troops on the 1sthmus, as
such a’ course would prec1p1tate 01v11 war and dlsturb for an |
d 1ndef1n1te perlod the free translt Wthh we are pledged toi-i

?1

| protect " .Pventually Colombia dec1ded that 1t was useless L

to try and get her land back by foroe and “she began the long

1land: weary task of obtalnlng an 1ndemn1ty by dlplomatlc repre«i;f},"

sentatlon,f??- : . . _ ‘ .
on. November 18 1903, the Hay—Bunau Varllla Treaty was f”
drawn up in Washlngton. It should be noted ‘here that Bunau;
_Varllla became the Mlnlster of Panama to the Uhlted States f};
after the Panama revolutlon.73 Thls treaty provlded that the'

‘Unlted States would be free to construct a canal throunh

‘Panama. Panama was to. be pald the same amounts of money Wthh B

had been offered to Colombia 1n the Hay Herran Treaty. Whe

treaty also guaranteed Panama S 1ndependence and the Colomblan_‘-

government was agaln warned not to try and recover her former

.?4

'terrltory by force of arms. _ - _

' Roosevelt had flnally aohleved hlS cherlshed goal the
ii_Panama Canal route, He later descrlbed h1s pOlle 1n the
"lfollow1ng manner.: -

‘ A'The people of- Panama were a unlt in des1r1ng -
. the Canal and in wishing to overthrow the rule . —— -
. -of Colombia, If they had not revolted, I should .. -

“have recommended. to Congress “to take possess1on
“of ‘the isthmus by force of arms; and I-had -

- actually -written the first draft of my Message

. to this effect. . When .they. revolted, T promptly

,’used the Navy to prevent the - bandlts, who. . .~

“had tried to hold us up, from’ spendlng ‘months -

-"of futlle bloodshed in conquerlng or endeavorlngi“"
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o |l1sue,

*'pto conquer the Isthmus, 0 the laetlng damage IR
;- - of the Isthmus,- of: usy - and of. the world, I @ v
o-did not consult Hay, or Root, or anyone else L
© - as to what I did, because a council. of war: . .-
». ~does not flght» and I 1ntended to do ‘the . 30b S
once for all° 75 . Ll RCTR

— 3

‘ROOSevelt dld hls 30b well, for he dld acqulre the canal.a,”x;‘”xw“

'However, we must ‘now look back and see 1f he was respon81ble

' 'for the revolutlon. or 1f he gustly 1nterpreted the ‘ eaty of

| Slble for the Panama revolutlon, can not be thoreughly Qupmti“ g

”fported by ev1dences Roosevelt defended hlmself from thls ‘
charge by statlng | ‘ |

’:,ngo one . connected w1th the Amerloan Government
sg;qhad any part in preparlng. 1n01t1ng, or. encour--
- weaging.the revolution, and except-for:the re+ ..
.. “ports of our military and maval- offlcers, which.
~-. 1 forwarded to Congress, no oné connected with
.. the CGovérnment had any previous knowledge con-
.-.cerning the proposéd: revolutlon, ;accept ‘such .
-, as was accessible to6 any person who read- the -
" newspapers-and kept abreast.of current ques»:
.- tions and current-affairs, By ‘the unanimous
u',;actlon of its people, and without the firing L
i of a; shot, the state ‘'of Pansama . declared them~q L
”ﬂiselves an’ 1ndepcndent republlc. ?6 o e

Ki Roosevelt's defensc was a 81mple denlal that he or members of

‘hlS admlnlstratlon had any knowledge of what was g01ng on,,e{“”5i3”x*'“

4Yet Roosevelt and members of hwe admlnlstratlon had had

.several meetlngs w1th C”omwell and BunauevarWlla.?7 Henry

= Prlngle states"

, Surely Roosevelt was not as nalve as all that
. It'is inconceivable -that a President ‘so well

- . informed on.other sub jects did. not know about
,_j@Cromwell's activities, -Such a. ‘statement places
Trasevere’ straln upon my theory: that Roosevelt

The flrst charge, that Roosevelt was dlrectly reSQOnm 5:?




‘was not con301ou81y untruthful. He could _

hardly have discussed birth control with Crom~.
“well or the French drama:with Bunau-Varilla,
. +For Roosevelt to say - -that his administration
- knew. no ‘more of the. revolutlonary plans than
A newspaper reader ‘wa.s untrue. 78 :

- Prlngle s conolu31on 1s that Roosevelt probably dld nothlng
E to 1nclte the revolutlon, but contrary to Roosevelt's state~~
ments, the Pre31dent was. extremely well 1nformed concernlng
| the plans of the consplrators.?9 R | ‘
Professor Hlll feels much 1n the eame manner as Prlngle
does,, H111 901nts out that Roosevelt, Hay, and other admlnn-‘
jg 1stratlon o;flclals contlnually denled that they had anythlng
to do w1th 1n01t1ng the revolutlon or g1v1ng assurances to
Panama in case of a revolt Hlll through hlS 1nvest1gat10ns
of" the prlvate correspondances between the admlnlstratlon
ofr1C1a1s,,be11eves that these denlale are bas1ca11y truth~'”iiff
‘ful but Hlll does not belleve that there ‘Wwas no communlcam;atvu
‘ tlon w1th any of the revolutlonary 1eaders and he states~»q
' j'fIn view of the conversatlons that Bunauavarllla '
. .had with Roosevelt, Hay, &and loomis, the facts -
hardly warrant Hay's: statement to the Colombian
- representative that 'any charge that.this gov~.
v;_ernment, or..any responsible member of it, held
i’intercourse, whether official or unofflclal,
...with agents of the revolutlon in Panama, is
_utterly without gustlflcatlon ». - There is no .
. ‘question that both the attitude and the actions
- of the admlnlstratlon durlng the weeks which -
.. followed- .the rejection of the treaty gave: en-~
'«;couragemant, at least 1nd1rectly, to the-‘
'leaders of the 1nsurre0‘tlone 80

Other authors tend - to agree w1th Hlll and Prlnglee Roosevelt

‘never. gave ‘an offlclal assurance of help to the Panama revo»

knew what was happenlng- 1nd1rectly he supported 1t - but he A


http:thetrea.ty
http:rejection.of
http:deniE).ls

27\
'lutlenlsts.' RS

Roosevelt can noﬁ escape nearly as ea51ly the crltlclsm

i that he mlsused the Treaty of 18@6 w1th New Granada to further'dA -

the 1ntereete of the revolutlonlsts,- In a spec1al message .
to Congress on January 4 190@ Roosevelt began hlS defense
L of hlS use of the treaty and of hlS qulok recognltlon of the
new state of Panama, ‘He statedv B | o

S I have not denled, nor do I W1sh to deny,
- . either the validity or the:propriety of the
- general rule that a new state should be re~- -
" cognized 'as independent till it has shown its.
Lablllty to maintain its 1ndependance.i This
- - rule is derived from the principle of non- V
N ,1ntervenﬁ10n, and. as a corollary of that prin-.
. .ciple has generally. been observed by .the .
,fUnlted States. But,"like" the pr1n01ple from -
which it is deduced, the rule is subgect to .
A}exoeptlons, and there are in my opinion clear . .-
and imperative reasons why a departure from it .
was justified and even required in the present
" - instance, .These reasons embrace, first, our,*-xif
treaty rights; second, our hational interests .
and safety: and, third, the: 1nterests of s
collective cvv1llzatlon. 81

Roosevelt‘s flrst llne of defense was the treaty rlghtsn‘;
ofdthe-Unlted StateS5, In hlS meseage, Roosevelt stated that’
ithe prlmary obgectlve of the Treaty of 1846 ‘was’ to assure |
the constructlon of an 1nteroceanlc canal Because of thls f‘
treaty, Colombla was obllged to 1et the Unlted States bulld -

a canal. Roosevelt reasoned that when Colombla reJected the

u“HaymHerran Treaty she was- also refu81ng t0 recognlze the-

treaty rlghts of the Unlted States, Roosevelt contlnued by
: statlng that once Panama was recognlzed as 1ndependent, the

,Unlted States was bound by the Treaty of 1846 to protect theﬂl'
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t new state from external aggre881on,. Panama was the successor
of Colombla and aoverelgnuy over the 1sthmue now belonged tof,
the Panamanlansgxau

Secondly, Roosevelt argued that natlonal defense and

R safety nece381tated the pollcy Wthh he adopted, The delayefﬁ_;

; Wh1Ch would have come about after Colombla regected the Hay%ﬁffff

ilHerran Treaty would have endangered Amerlcan self«defenee

because they would have postponed the bulldlng of the canal pf”

~"Roosevelt added that these postponements oould have eventu~.§f"f"“

‘ﬁﬁ.iithe Colomblans wanted to delay actlon long enough to conflsmﬂw’f
. '.cate the property rlghts of the Prench Canal Company 1n
"ﬁiPanama, Rooeevelt reasoned that when the French would have

’..moved agalnsr suoh conflscatlons. Colombla would have called . "

 ‘on the Unlted States to- malntaln order under the Treaty of

‘1946 and thus the Unlted States eould have been forced 1nto ;i:f

8:3{ o

Roosevelt's thlrd p01nt was thet hlS pollcy in Panama

|| was dlctated by the 1nterests of collectlve 01v111zat10n.

' ijor Roosevelt, the constructlon fo the canal was an under»""
"?5~tak1ng for the good OL the whole world and one for whlch the BE.

Unlted States had recolved a. mandate from all of 01v1llzatlom.<7

'Roosevelt contlnued h1s argument by etatlhg that so no _::';5*

’H~;'obstacle would be 1n the way of the Unlted States, Great

‘Brltlan had agreed to abrogate the Clayton»Bulwer Treaty.‘-f,V"'

Roosevelt was conv1nced that the.. purpeee of the Unlted States

" 23',

| . ally brought the Uﬁlted States 1nto war. Roosevelt felt that; cE
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had been approved by all the nations of the world who saw th
neceessity of the canal;aa ' , »

Now that we have seen Roosevelt's justification for his
policy, we4mugt g0 back and analyze it aéoérding to the facts,
First, we musf go back to the Treaty of 1846, Roosevelt had
justified using American troops on the Isthmus because of the
previous policy of the United States in the area. The record
shows that the United States, from 18464 +ill 1903, had useﬁ
tfoopé on the Tsthmus seven times to deal wi%h»insurrections.
What is more importanf, as Hill states, 1s that

In every instance, prior t6 1902, the forces
were used only with the approval or consent
of the Colombian: authorities. On but one oc-

- casion, according to the evidence, did the
American troops interfere with the movement

- of Colombian troops; and in this instance
(September~October, 1902) the Colombian pro-
test was accepted and regret was expressed
by the United States. Prior to the Panama
revolution of 1903, to gquote the words of the
Colombian NMinister at Washington(April 12,
1904) the United States *had never in pre-
vious disturbances prevented the landing of
troops of the Colombian Government, nor their
transport on the railroad'. 86

Yety during the revolution,‘goosevelt had ordered troops to
the Iéthmus Wiﬁhout Colombia's éonsént and had used the troopg
to prevent Colombian forces. from putting‘doﬁn the reveolution,
Roosevelt had said that this was the previous policy of the
Unitedvstates, but truly, as Callcott states: “.,,this‘waé
a clear reversal of the policy of Washington as to the tran-

87

git area,"” The Colombians were using the treaty as a basis

of protest against Roosevelt, yet Roosevelt was using the

r
Y



http:Rooseve.1t

30
the treaty as his means of justifying_his actions, One of the
parties had to change the interpretation of the treaty for
| this to happen and from the'evidence above it appears to have
been Roosevelt who changed it. It seems that Roosevelt had
fo change the meaﬁing of the treaty in order to meet the need
of Qbﬁaining;the canal,

éoosevelt?s other arguments: those of national interest
and safety, and those of fhe interests of_civilizéﬁion, must -
also be understood in light of the facts, 1In these‘érgu~
ments, Rooseveltfs main line of defense ?ested on the fact
that Colombia's rejection of the Hay-Herran Treaty woul& cause
serious delays in the building of the canale These'delays
would ﬁurt the United States and the other'nations of the
world. Yem,_if the need for the canal was so urgent, when
Colpmbia re jected the treaty Rocsevelt should have gone back
to the Spooner Act which called for the-canal to be built
through Nicaragua if'the Panaﬁa route could not be worked out.
Thé interests of the world aﬁd_the intérests of the United
States would have been just as well taken éare of by a canal -
through Ni@aragua as by one through Panama.88

Roosevelt was convinced that the canal had to be built
through Panama. He had worked hard fef'that purpose and
eventually it was accomplished, Colombia; too, eveﬁtually
received some restitution for her loss of Panama, but money
is never able to heal all the wounds of diplomatic dealings'g89

Roosevelt's ethics are open to many questions but he did
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achieve his goals, 1In a speech at Berkley, California, on

Varch 11, 1911, Robsevelt summed uﬁ‘his actions in connection

with Panama as he sitated:

T am interested in the Panama Canal because T
sta¥ted it, If I had followed traditional con-
servative methods I should have submitted a
dignified state paper of probably two-hundred
pages to Congress, and the debate or it would
be going on yet; but I took- the Canal Zone and
let Congress debate and while the debate goes -

ot the canal does too, 90




CONCL&SION

What conclusion can be érawn from this paper? The answer| |
to that question will probaﬁly depend Qﬁ your outlook toward
Theodore Roosevelt as a Presidemt. All the facts show that
Roocsevelt wofked‘hard and that he eventually acguired that
which he‘sought - the Panama’Canal, Buﬁ was this écguisition-
carried'out in a Jjust manner? If youlbelieve in Theodore
Rooséveit's defense of his actdions, you would have to say that
the taking of Panama was a just act, !Howevef, if you look at
the facts of the issue, I don't believe that you can say that
it was a just act,

It is hard for any historian to make armoral judgment
on any piece of history. But in the case of Panama, this
judgment must be mades: either the actions of Roosevelt were
just or they were unjust, John Blum,.whose writings'lean in
favor of Roosevelt, admits ih reference to Panama that§ "In
what he did; certainly in the way he did it, Roosevelt was
wrong: buf‘he Qas also convinced and Cﬁnsistant,"gl T believg
that what Blum is Séying is true and ﬁasically I agree with‘
him, However, I do not believe that you can justify -
Roosevelt's actions by merely stating that aé é President he
was convinced and consistant in what he did,

One of the best summations, which I have found, of the
Panama affair comes from George Mowry: ©Not only does Nowry
criticize Roosevelt, he also criticizes the American people

who were living when the acguisition of Panama took place.




A 33
He states:

The presidential invitation to revolt by in-
direction, the remarkable split-second timing
of the U.S.S. Nashville's arrival in Panama,
the utterly indefensible interpretation of the
transit. treaty with Colombia, and the indecent
haste in the recognition of the new Panama Re-

- public made Roosevelt a moral accomplice both
before and after the act. The whole affair sug-
‘gested that for Roos evelt ethics stopped at the
tidewater beyond which lay a moral jungle where
power was the only-rightful determinanat. Ap-~.
»parently, the American people held the same
view, Fven the judicious Flihu Root defended
Roosevelt®s actions both -publicly and privately.
Above the sovereignty of Colombia, Root declared,
there existed a ‘*higher right®. Not even the
Democratic opp051t10n challenged the President
immediately after the event, Senator’Corman's

_ plea to disapprove the treaty was ignored. -
"Instead, the Louisiana legislature by a unani-
mous vote approved the treaty and congratulated
the President., So did the great majority of
newspapers and periodicals. International law,
The  Qutlook observed, wes sometimes based ‘upon
‘a sense of justice but gquite as much on national
convenience.,.'. 92

Mowry's conclusion appears 1o be thaﬁ Roosevelt and the
American people both rélied on convenience aﬁd theAimperialisf
tic tendencies of the period to get that which they thought
they néeded. I must agree with that conclusion. Roosévelt
ﬁrought new power to the présidency and he was én aggressive
leader of an aggressive people., The mood of the nation was
one of gxpansion.and world leadership. With Panama, Roosevelt
merely combined ﬁis own_imperialistic nature with thé‘imperim
alistic mood of the_country - the result - the wrongful
taklng of Panama,

N

Roosevelt talked about the Panama affair often after he
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left office, He was extremely proud of what he had accom- ...
plished, In a speech he made during World War I, Roosevelt

stated:

¢ in reference to the Panama Canal. I might
have taken the matter under advisement and put
it before the Senate, in which casée we should
of had a number of most able speeches on the
‘subject.  We would have had a number of very
profound arguments, and they would have been
going on now, and the Panama Canal would be

in the dim future yet. We would have had half
a century of discussion and perhaps the Panama
Canal, 1 preferred that we should have the
Panama Canal first and the half century of
discussion afterward. And now instead of dis-
cussing the canal before it was built, which
would have been harmful, they merely discuss
me -~ a discussion which I regard with benign
interest, 93

Roosevelt, in this Speech'és'in all éfheré, admité no guilt
on his part, He claims to have acted the way he did in order
to get the canal built as soon as posSible. HOwevér,.his
expediency in handling the canal does not jusﬁify.fhe actions
which he took. The discussion of Rooéévelt’s policies will |
probably continue long into the . .future, Some men-will prob-
ably.always claim that Roosevelt did the right»thing. but in
dealing with Panama, I am forced to agree with the editors

of the‘American'Heritage books: "It was an arrogant, fla-

grantly illegal display of American power and pressure that

would plague Washington's relations with ILatin America for

ol

decades,"
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